



÷

MICROCOPY RESOLUTION TEST CHART NATIONAL BUREAU OF STANDARDS-1963-A Report No. FAA/PM-83/21

MTR-83W91

AD-A141 435

FILE COPY

E

AIRCRAFT TRAFFIC DENSITY IN THE LOS ANGELES BASIN

N. A. SPENCER

The MITRE Corporation McLean, Virginia 22102



AUGUST 1983

Document is available to the U.S. public through the National Technical Information Service Springfield, Virginia 22161



Prepared for

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION FEDERAL AVIATION ADMINISTRATION

PROGRAM ENGINEERING AND MAINTENANCE SERVICE Washington, D.C. 20591

84 05 24 0**02**

Technical Report Documentation Page

			N
I. Report No.	2. Government Accession No.	3. Recipient & Catalog	NQ.
DOT/FAA/PM-83/21	-H141432		
4. Title and Subtitle		5. Report Date	
Aircraft Traffic Density in	the Los Angeles Basin	August 1983	
Arterate france bensity in	the hoo impered form	6. Performing Organizat	ion Code
		8. Performing Organizat	ion Report No.
7. Author's)			1
N. A. Spencer		MTR-83W00091	V
9. Performing Organization Name and Address		10. Work Unit No. (TRA	15)
The MITRE Corporation			
Metrek Division		11. Contract or Grant N	0.
1820 Dolley Madison Blvd		DTFA01-82-C-10	003
McLean, VA 22102		13. Type of Report and	Period Covered
12. Sponsoring Agency Name and Address Department of Transportation			
Federal Aviation Administrat	tion	1	
800 Independence Avenue, S.J.	J.	14. Spannering Accordy (
Washington, D.C. 20591	••	APM-300	
15. Supplementary Notes		1	·· <u>·</u> ·································
16. Abstract			
An estimate of the number o	of aircraft flying in the L	os Angeles basi	n was made
using airborne and ground-b	ased radar measurements.	These estimates	are
combined with FAA projection	ns of traffic growth to pr	edict the futur	e aircraft
density as seen by an airbo	orne Traffic Alert and Coll	ision Avoidance	System
(TCAS). Results include th	e findings that (a) peak d	lensity decrease	s
approximately linearly with	radius, (b) the number of	aircraft incre	ases
linearly with the sum of to	wer operations, (c) for ye	ar 2000, within	a radius
of 5 nmi, the projected max	imum density is 0.45 aircr	aft/nmi ² , the p	rojected
maximum number of aircraft	is 35, and the projected m	aximum number o	f ATCRBS
aircraft is 20, and (d) wit	hin a radius of 10 nmi, th	ese figures are	0.24, 75,
and 43, respectively.			
17. Key Words	18. Distribution State	nent	
Los Angeles Basin, Air Traf	fic Density, Document is	available to t	he public
Instantaneous Airborne Coun	it, TCAS] through the	National Techn	ical
	Information	Service, Sprin	gfield,
	Virginia 2	2151	
19. Security Classif, (of this report)	20. Security Classif, (of this page)	21. No. of Pages	22. Price
19. Security Cleasif. (of this report) Unclassified	20. Security Classif. (of this page) Unclassified	21. No. of Pages	22. Price

Form DOT F 1700.7 (8-72)

1

Reproduction of completed page authorized

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

The activities necessary to obtain the data for this study required the cooperation of a number of different organizations. The fact that results were obtained despite many last-minute changes caused by weather, equipment schedules, and personnel schedules attests to the devotion and interest of all concerned. The author would like to acknowledge the following participants from the FAA Headquarters and the Technical Center: Manuel Gonzalez, FAA Office of System Engineering Management; Col. John Rathgeber, USAF; Joseph Brady and Jim Davis. FAA Technical Center, Engineering Management Staff and Data Engineering and Development Division; Dave Moll and John Stasiak, FAA Technical Center, Automation Engineering Division; Gene Mercer, FAA Office of Aviation Policy and Plans; and Gene Barlow, FAA Air Traffic Service. In addition, the following personnel from the field performed key roles: Capt. D. Lum, USAF; Bob Eusten and Max Hockett, FAA Western Region; and Larry Mosher, FAA Southern Region. Review and direction of this work was the responsibility of Larry Taubenkibel, FAA Systems Research and Development Service, who also acted as the principal focal point for all coordination. The participation of Bela Collins of MITRE in securing and analyzing the operations data was especially valuable.



Accessic NTIS CRA&I DIIC TAB Unamnounced Justification Bv. Distribution/ Availability Codes Avail and/or Special Dist

iii

TABLE OF CONTENTS

		Page
1.	INTRODUCTION	1-1
2.	BACKGROUND	2-1
3.	APPROACH TO A NEW MODEL OF TRAFFIC DENSITY	3-1
4.	AIRBORNE SURVEILLANCE DATA	4-1
5.	GROUND BASED SURVEILLANCE DATA	5-1
6.	IS LOS ANGELES UNIQUE?	6-1
7.	UTILIZATION OF TOWER OPERATIONS DATA	7-1
8.	FUTURE GROWTH PROJECTIONS	8-1
9.	ESTIMATES OF AIRBORNE ENVIRONMENT OVER TIME	9-1
10.	SUMMARY AND CONCLUSIONS	10-1
APP	ENDIX A - SAMPLES OF OPERATIONS DATA USED IN THE ANALYSIS	A-1
APP	ENDIX B - REFERENCES	B-1

v

And And And And And And

1. INTRODUCTION

This report describes the method used to obtain an estimate of the aircraft density in the Los Angeles airspace, both for the present time and well into the future. The need for these estimates arose from the requirement to specify the airborne environment for the Traffic Alert and Collision Avoidance System (TCAS), so that the system could operate in all airspace.

The Los Angeles basin represents the most severe region in the United States in terms of airborne traffic density and extent, and has traditionally been used as a standard against which to judge whether systems will survive the load. Earlier models of traffic have become outmoded and inaccurate; at the same time available instrumentation for measuring the airborne traffic has been improving. Accordingly, the FAA, together with substantial assistance from the U.S. Air Force, undertook steps to obtain a new estimate of the airborne environment in the Los Angeles Basin and a forecast of how it will change in the future.

Models of aircraft traffic can take many forms. The most comprehensive would provide a moment-by-moment picture of every aircraft for an extended period of time. Such a dynamic model has been used in the past for many purposes; however, creating such a model again would require resources well beyond those presently available. Instead, it was realized that with reasonable resources the primary TCAS requirements could be satisfied with a simpler model, which would focus only on aircraft density.

2. BACKGROUND

In 1969 the Air Traffic Control Advisory Committee (ATCAC) of the Department of Transportation provided a major analysis of the air transportation system, and arrived at a number of important conclusions which have influenced the course of the system ever since (Reference 1). In the ATCAC report, an estimate was made of the traffic in the Los Angeles basin (120 nmi x 120 nmi centered on the Los Angeles airport as in the outlined box of Figure 2-1), but there were few details as to the actual spatial distribution of the aircraft.

In 1972 the FAA Technical Center undertook a coordinated survey of the towers in the Los Angeles basin (Reference 2). From this survey they produced a model of the approximate flight profiles during typical high activity periods. The MITRE Corporation then combined that baseline data together with growth in operations, as forecast by the FAA, to produce a number of different models for different years (References 3 and 4). For example, the baseline data indicated 495 aircraft in the basin in 1972; a projection to 1982 indicated 804 aircraft; and a projection to 1995 indicated 1840 aircraft.*

In 1976, while the Mode S sensor (formerly denoted DABS, Discrete Address Beacon System) was being developed, M.I.T. Lincoln Laboratory assembled a transportable Mode S sensor, called the Transportable Measurement Facility (TMF). Data was

^{*} Note: These numbers varied somewhat for different "snapshots".



FIGURE 2-1 THE LOS ANGELES BASIN

2-2

197.42

collected at various places around the country, including Los Angeles (Reference 5). There, it was found that the average value of the instantaneous airborne count (IAC) was about 160 beacon equipped aircraft within a range of 60 nmi of the TMF -there was no way of knowing the number of non-beacon equipped aircraft. The TMF data also provided important observations on the actual distribution of aircraft -- a great improvement over any distribution inferred from the 1972 survey. From the TMF data, the peak measured density of beacon equipped aircraft within a 10 nmi radius circle was .10 aircraft per square nautical mile.

By 1981 it was recognized that both the forecasts and the baseline figures used in the models made in 1972 should be reassessed. This was so not only because it was 10 years later, but also because of the fuel embargos and the wide-body revolution in aircraft design. Since ongoing work still required traffic models, but no new baseline had been produced, the 1972 model was modified by correcting for the actual growth that was known to have occurred between 1972 and 1981, using the current FAA projection to the year 1995. That was the basis for the model which was called LAX-1100 (Reference 6).

As the development of the airborne Traffic Alert and Collision Avoidance System (TCAS) required an up-to-date estimate of the projected traffic density, an initiative was undertaken early in 1982 to obtain a new baseline of the present level of traffic in the Los Angeles Basin. This information was needed to aid in setting standards which had to account for such things as specifying an adequate size of track file, providing for garble processing, and assessing the impact of automatic interference limiting measures.

3. APPROACH TO A NEW MODEL OF TRAFFIC DENSITY

It was decided to build the new model on the basis of airborne surveillance measurements, which was expected to provide a substantial improvement over the best previous means, the 1972 survey. While the airborne measurements are ideal for detecting beacon equipped aircraft (the coverage is not blocked by terrain features), it is not as effective for non-beacon equipped aircraft (it must compete with ground clutter and with ground vehicle clutter). Accordingly, the fraction of non-beacon aircraft was estimated from special recordings of ground Air Traffic Control radars. Thus, the total Instantaneous Airborne Count (IAC) was determined by a combination of both airborne data (beacon aircraft) and ground based data (non-beacon aircraft).

The time of the measurements was arranged to be near the peak traffic of the day. However, the day-to-day activity varies and this factor had to be taken into account. The measure used for activity is the sum of the daily operations count collected for every tower in the basin. The approach to obtaining an estimate of the peak density is therefore, first to measure the IAC, then to account for peak day activity by using the daily operations count, and finally to project to a future year by using the yearly operations count as forecast by the FAA. A complicating factor -- the air traffic controller's strike of 1981 -- also had to be taken into account.

4. AIRBORNE SURVEILLANCE DATA

Through the cooperation of the U.S. Air Force, airborne surveillance data was gathered in the vicinity of Los Angeles and, as a comparison, in the vicinity of New York City. Table 4-1 shows the local conditions for the four Los Angeles flights and for one New York flight. The flights were scheduled and coordinated principally by the U.S. Air Force Liason Officer attached to the FAA Office of System Engineering Management.

Data was scheduled to be collected during the expected high activity periods of the day. This was for the most part successful. Aircraft activity as measured by operations recorded at some of the towered airports confirmed this. Examples of the hourly data are shown in Appendix A. In general the weather was good, only one day having periods of light showers (11 March).

The measurements typically lasted for about one-half hour to one hour, during which a continuous stream of target reports on beacon aircraft was recorded. These reports included the positions of all detected aircraft in latitude, longitude, and altitude. Further, they provided the time, Mode A code, Mode A and Mode C validity status, and several other parameters.

The data was transcribed to nine-track tapes at the U.S. Air Force facility and sent to the FAA Technical Center. There they were preprocessed by the Data Engineering and Development Division for the Engineering Management Staff. The resulting tapes were then sent both to the FAA Office of System Engineering Management, where a "quick-look" was conducted (Reference 7 for example) and subsequent flights planred, and to the MITRE facility where the detailed analysis being reported here was conducted.

4-1

4

TABLE 4-1 LOCAL CONDITIONS DURING DATA COLLECTION FLIGHTS

PLACE

Los Angeles

LOCAL CONDITIONS

15 December 1981 Tuesday, 1100 local time 5 mile visibility

11 March 1982 Thursday, 1600 local time light rain 7 mile visibility

3 June 1982 Thursday 1400 local time 10 mile _s_bility

23 Jul 1982 Friday 400 local time 12 mil 7 ibility

New York

9 July 1982 Friday, 1300 local time 10 mile visibility

At MITRE, the data was then processed to retain only those target reports lying within a 120 nmi square centered on the Los Angeles airport (LAX), and they were divided into scan intervals. A typical plot of the number of beacon reports per scan is shown in Figure 4-1, both for those aircraft reporting Mode C altitude (called Mode C aircraft) and for those aircraft not reporting Mode C (called non Mode C). For each flight, a time was chosen when the number of beacon reports was both high and consistent -- this became the base scan for further analysis.

In the base scan there are instances of spurious reports, which should not be attributed to aircraft, as well as occurrences of missing reports. The process used to reveal real aircraft was to plot sequential scans, after the base scan, for an interval of about one minute. When a string of sequential reports lined up, that indicated the presence of an aircraft, and the target report in the base scan was either retained, discarded, or a new one was added according to whether an aircraft was present or not. Figure 4-2 shows such a plot, with the arrows indicating the presence of an aircraft. When several aircraft are in a close cluster, such as near the zero-zero point over Los Angeles airport, the consequences of synchronous garble often appear.

With the base scan thus manually "cleaned up", we have some assurance that the target reports are valid. Figure 4-3 shows the result for the 3 June flight, where the squares indicate Mode C aircraft and the plus signs indicate non-Mode C aircraft. Initially, these were a total of 189 beacon aircraft; after cleanup this dropped to 179 beacon aircraft. The concentration of aircraft near the Los Angeles airport, especially along the Long Beach -- Los Angeles -- Van Nuys corridor is apparant, as is the lack of aircraft over the ocean and over the mountains. The scale of these plots is the same as that of the map in Figure 2-1; the Los Angeles airport is the large cross at the midpoint of the plot.





FIGURE 4-2 SEQUENTIAL STRINGS OF TARGET REPORTS



FIGURE 4-3 POSITIONS OF BEACON AIRCRAFT

Having the locations of beacon aircraft, we can now analyze the density of the Los Angeles basin by dividing it into a square grid of 5 nmi boxes as in Figure 4-4. There, every number represents the number of beacon aircraft within that particular 5 nmi x 5 nmi box. A square "cell" will be defined as an area having a "radius" (the radius of the inscribed circle), and the number of aircraft within that square cell will be determined from Figure 4-4. For example, in Figure 4-4, the total number of aircraft in the entire Basin, a square cell of 60 nmi radius, is 179. The number of aircraft in the most dense 10 nmi radius square cell (dotted outline) is 23. This process was continued for a variety of square cell sizes, each time finding the location of the cell of highest density and noting the number of aircraft in it.

When all four Los Angeles flights were thus treated, and plotted as in Figure 4-5, it was found that they could be adequately characterized by the simple relation given there. The relation applies very well at a cell radius of about 10 nmi, and with fair but conservative accuracy at a radius of 5 nmi. The value of having this heuristic relation is that one formula averages all of the variations that existed over the four flights: the specific aircraft localities, and the many operational conditions (takeoff, cruise, IFR, etc.) The peak density in any given size cell is seen to be directly proportional to the IAC of the entire Los Angeles basin. This enables one to take the average of a large amount of data, rather than to use directly only a small amount of data in a localized area. The nearly linear variation of the number of aircraft with radius (exponent is 1.1) is quite different from that for a uniform random distribution, which would follow a square law instead.

FIGURE 4-4 AIRCRAFT DISTRIBUTION

-357 E.

S. 8. 2. 3

11		11							TE 3 JUNE 1982	71/17/1 -	ME = 1.14/4.5															
Ž		ź						I	ð	-	-															
ഹ		ഗ																								
		L	Н	+		-																				
T	0	0	0	o	ŗ	-	••	J	•	9	u	ø	¢،	•	-	c)	ы	0	ပ	-	~	•	-	n		
T	0	°	0	-	0	0	c	c	сı	-	'n	~	•	-	o	0	ຕ	-	-	ı	~	fu.	С	з		
	n	-	•	G	0	c	-	c	o	c	-	U	•	-	N	0	c	-	n	¢)	-	n	Ċ	e		
	0	c	c	¢5	o	-	-	o	c	c	-	n	Ċ	¢,	a	C,	¢1	Ċ	0	e	c	с	-	¢,		
بہ	o	o	0	0	n	Ð	-	U	0	۵	•	~	•	-	ø	~	-	-	~	c	C	0	¢	۰		
ΞΞ.	9	•	o	۵	0	n	0	0	o	~	~	-	•	~	•	o,	-	-	¢,	c	n	ω	S	n		
<u>ош</u>	•	¢	n	0	0	ŗ	ŝ	c	ç	¢,	P 1	ç	0	~	-	-	c	с	¢،	-	0	¢	o	ſ		
AR AR	0	o	c	۵	¢١	•	0	ĉ	-	Ċ,	+	0	•	~	c	*	-	¢	c	-	c	0	o	•		
NSE	-	¢	c	٠	c	c	ç	c,	0	ſ	~	c,	с,	~	~	-	¢,	¢,	ſ	v	o	0	•	-		į
DE	•	0	¢	0	••	ç	¢	o	<u></u>		-	-	<u>د،</u>	-	~	-	-	U	e	¢,	Ð	<i>•</i> •	¢,	ð		i
ST DIU	-	-	-	ſ	-	-	-	o		14	-	14	i ~ 1	•	÷	0	ç	e	U	ſ	Ċ,	G	¢,	C1		
MO NO		•	<u>。</u>	ĉ	0	<u> </u>	0	~	i n	~	••	~	-	-	C	-	-	n	r)	o	n	U	c ,	~		
	ſ	C	0	n	c	-	ç	υ	~ ~	~	•	n	5	'n	-	e)	Ŷ	Ŷ	14	¢۰	n	ŕ	Ċ	"		
	¢,	-	n	c	Ċ	o	0	c)	l L	-	د 	-	1~	¢,	r,	L.	ø	J	c.		0	. r .	-	c,		
	۲.	٠,	••	Ð	-	-	C)	÷	r,	•	<i>,</i> ,	**	۴.	٢.	,	-	0	~	r.	¢,	۰.	••	c	•.		
	۴.	د،	c	¢,	۲	ſ	~	-	-	S	"	-	o,	o	•	•.•	c.	"	•	•	~	•	••	••		
	(.	-	o	0	۴.	r)	• •	14	.,	• •	¢.	-	• •	L)	••	•	¢	••	·	· •	•	ı.	· ·	•		
	۴.	~	۴,	~ `	•	-	•	-	•	••	••	'	•	¢.	•	••	••	•	- 1	••	۰.	۰.	·*•	÷		
	• •	•	-	••	٠,	٠.	۰.	0	¢ •	••	~	• •	r	~	r	••	~		••	••	••	¢	••	••		
	C	^ 3	,	•••	••	• •	•	ι.	¢.	-	•	•	0	r,	r,	<i>r</i> ,		'	,	•	• •	••				
	••	•	0	-	· •	٠,	٦	• •	••	• •	• •	••	' 1	• •	~	<i>.</i> ~	~	•	••	••	••	•	••	•		
	•.	· 7	~,	-,	2	• •	11	-	-	,	n	•	،	0	~	•.	••	••	••	~	e e	•	•	. •		
	٠.	ĥ	2	~	• •	•	• •	<i>•</i> •	`	••	٠	~	•	n	,		•	•	•	•	• •	ì	•	•	2	
	,	. .	٢	,	,	,	,	-	,	`	•	• •	•	,	~)	• •	,	`	. ,	- 1	•	۲	••	,		



FIGURE 4-5 RELATIVE DISTRIBUTION OF AIRCRAFT AT LOS ANGELES

While the number of aircraft within a given surveillance radius is the important physical parameter for TCAS design, the associated density parameter is convenient to use when characterizing the airspace. Figure 4-6 converts the data of Figure 4-5 into density -- that is, density of aircraft in the maximum density square cell of the given radius. The curve cannot be extrapolated below a square cell radius of 5 nmi because of the technique of analysis; however, for radii greater than 5 nmi, the maximum density in a square cell is nearly inversely proportional to radius. Thus, the maximum density within 10 nmi of an aircraft is about one-half of that within 5 nmi.

It is to be noted that the highest density actually measured within a 5 nmi radius square cell was .18, and within a 10 nmi radius square cell it was .07, both of these measurements were on 23 July 1982. This latter measurement is comparable with the 1976 measurement of maximum density with the TMF, which varied from .08 to .10 within a 10 nmi circular radius.

The relation shown in Figure 4-5 is one of the important results of this study. However, other inferences can also be drawn from the results of the four LAX flights. About 68 percent of the beacon aircraft were reporting Mode C. (If the data from the marginal day of 11 March were excluded, the fraction would drop to 63 percent.) This is a significant increase from the 45 percent found in 1976 during the TMF tests, and corresponds more closely with the results found when the TMF was moved to Washington and Philadelphia. It was also found that about one-half of the aircraft were squawking code 1200, and about one-half of those were Mode C. This is depicted in Table 4-2.

The altitude distribution of the Mode C aircraft is shown in Figure 4-7. About 50 percent of these aircraft reported below 5,000 ft, 75 percent below 10,000 ft, and 90 percent below 20,000 ft.



			TAB	LE 4	-2		
SOME	CHARACTERISTICS	OF	THE	LOS	ANGELES	BEACON	ENVIRONMENT

	MODE C	NON MODE C	TOTAL
 FRACTION SQUAWKING CODE 1200 	.23	 .24 	 .47
FRACTION SQUAWKING OTHER CODES	.45	 •08 	.53 .53
i TOTAL 	.68	 .32 	 1.00



FIGURE 4-7 ALTITUDE DISTRIBUTION OF MODE C AIRCRAFT

5. GROUND BASED SURVEILLANCE DATA

The airborne surveillance data was used to determine the IAC of beacon aircraft, both Mode C and non-Mode C. To obtain an estimate of the number of aircraft flying without transponders, an analysis was made of a common digitizer (CD) recording, which was obtained by the FAA Western Region from the San Pedro long range radar, just a few miles away from the Los Angeles airport. This tape was reformatted by the Automation Engineering Division at the FAA Technical Center and then sent to MITRE for further analysis.

Since the ground based radar does not have an unobstructed view of the whole basin, we cannot use it to check the entire IAC, but within its surveillance view we can determine the fraction of aircraft having operating transponders to the total population (with transponders and without transponders).

The CD recording was made on 23 July approximately two hours earlier than the airborne measurement. While the two measurements were not at exactly the same time, they both occurred around the busy midday peak, and so can be considered to be samples of the same population. Although this circumstance is not ideal, any error should be small, and it will be seen that the impact on TCAS is minimal.

The same technique of observing correlatable strings of reports is used as for the airborne data. In this case, however, unassociated radar reports were plotted as well as all beacon reports. Since unassociated radar reports include all the radar clutter, the correlation process is considerably more difficult. Table 5-1 shows the end result of this process.

TABLE 5-1AIRCRAFT SEEN BY SAN PEDRO RADAR

TYPE	NUMBER
Mode C non-Mode C	91 <u>62</u>
Total Beacon	153
Radar	27
Total Aircraft	180

Date: 23 July 1982 Time: 1136 (local)

There were 153 beacon targets and 27 non-beacon targets. This gives us the rule that the total IAC is 1.18 times the beacon IAC.

Another use which can be made of the ground data is to cross-check the airborne beacon data. Accordingly, a grid similar to Figure 4-4 was made. The number of aircraft within the peak 5 nmi radius square cell and within the peak 10 nmi radius square cell agreed with those from the airborne data within one aircraft. This close correspondence, together with the self consistency among the four airborne measurements increases confidence in the overall series of measurements.

6. IS LOS ANGELES UNIQUE?

Having made the measurements of IAC in the Los Angeles basin and having developed some level of confidence in them, it is reasonable to ask if that locality is similar to others or is it so unusual that it is different in kind? To explore that question, several flights were scheduled in the vicinity of New York City. One of these, 9 July, was briefly analyzed to examine the density characteristics. For this analysis the step of visual correlation was omitted. That is, the beacon data for the selected scan was used as it came, recognizing that there would be some extraneous reports as well as missing reports. Other ground based data and operations data were recorded as well for possible future use.

As a result of this analysis it was found that the New York area has roughly similar characteristics to that of Los Angeles. Figure 6-1 is a plot of the New York beacon data. The variation of number of aircraft with radius follows a 1.2 power relation rather than the 1.1 power of Los Angeles. This results in slightly lower densities for a local area when a given number of aircraft are in a large area (e.g. 120 nmi x 120 nmi).

Thus the measured traffic in Los Angeles appears to be representative of other places in the country, although it has a somewhat higher density.



FIGURE 6-1 RELATIVE DISTRIBUTION OF AIRCRAFT IN NEW YORK

7. UTILIZATION OF TOWER OPERATIONS DATA

Although the variation of density with distance was consistent from day to day, each of the four day's flights had a different IAC, corresponding to different activity for that day. The next step in this analysis was to determine a way to account for these varying levels of activity.

The approach used here is to obtain daily operations data from each of the 17 towers in the Los Angeles basin, and to use the sum of these operations as an indicator of aviation activity. The FAA Western Region and the Office of Aviation Policy and Plans provided this information for the dates of the flights as well as for an extended period of time in the past. Appendix A shows the list of towered airports as well as examples of some of the data collected during the program.

Figure 7-1 shows the measured beacon IAC plotted with the sum of the tower operations in the basin. The four measurements are plotted, and an average line is drawn through them. The measured slope of the average line is 180 beacon IAC for every 10,000 operations. Since the total IAC includes both beacon and non beacon aircraft, the 1.18 factor from Section 5 should be included. This makes the expected total IAC 212 for every 10,000 total tower operations.

It can be seen that the scatter about the average line is fairly tight, being about the same level as the variation in hourly operations. This provides a fair degree of confidence that the variation in IAC can be represented by the variation in the daily operations count. The next step is simply to apply this information to the historical operations count so that we can estimate the peak IAC on the busiest day of the year.





Figure 7-2 is a plot of the total daily tower operations for 1980 through the period of measurement. With the exception of a short gaps in the data base, the plot is pretty much what would be expected. The most outstanding feature is the sharp drop of operations in August 1981, when air traffic controllers went on strike. Because of this action, and because of the downturn of the economy in 1981, the peak day in 1981 was below normal. Accordingly, the peak day in 1980 is chosen to represent "the present time".

To make this correction, we use the 212 IAC per 10,000 operations just determined, and multiply that by the total tower operations (16,868) for the peak day, 19 January 1980. The computed peak total IAC for the peak day in 1980 is 358 aircraft in the Los Angeles basin.



FIGURE 7-2 LOS ANGELES BASIN TOWERS DAILY OPERATIONS

ł.

ji,

8. FUTURE GROWTH PROJECTIONS

Having found the variation of density with distance together with the peak IAC, we have the required characterization of the airborne environment for the current period of time. To obtain a forecast of the environment into the future, we will use the annual operations forecast for towered airports.

Table 8-1 is a list of yearly operations supplied by the FAA Office of Aviation Policy and Plans. In addition, the IAC just computed for 1980 is shown, and is scaled for the succeeding years by the ratio of annual operations. The overall projected growth from 1980 to 2000 averages to 3.5% per year, starting slowly and gaining in the last decade. It is noted that the forecast peak IAC is only about 50 percent of the value used in the LAX-1100 model for 1995. This confirms the need that was recognized at the start of this project -- to redefine the baseline figures.

TABLE 8-1 FUTURE GROWTH PROJECTIONS

	ANNUAL OPERATIONS AT TOWERED AIRPORTS IN	
YEAR	THE L.A. BASIN	IAC
1980	5.07 Million	358
1985	5.50	388
1990	6.40	452
1995	7.90	558
2000	9.73	687

Carry Property of

9. ESTIMATES OF AIRBORNE ENVIRONMENT OVER TIME

In order to be useful for the TCAS design, the airborne population must be divided into three classes: ATCRBS transponders, Mode S transponders, and no transponders. The preceding section gave the basis for obtaining the total IAC over time; this section will break out the three classes.

Three scenarios will be developed to characterize equipage. The first scenario will be called the Baseline Scenario. This postulates a middle-of-the-road deployment of Mode S transponders. The second scenario is a more aggressive one, (Agressive Scenario) and the third scenario delays implementation by five years (Delayed Scenario). These employ differing assumptions about the rate of Mode S deployment; the total number of transponders is the same for all three scenarios. The assumptions are as follows:

1. Baseline Scenario

- a. The number of non-transponder aircraft remains constant until 1990, and then decreases linearly to zero by year 2000.
- b. The number of ATCRBS transponders continues to grow until 1985, and thereafter remains constant at that level.*

1.40.31

^{*}ATCRBS transponders could be further subdivided into Mode C and non-Mode C for this exercise, but TCAS is planned to track both, so the distinction will not be made here.

- c. The number of Mode S transponders (all are assumed to be altitude reporting) starts from zero in 1985 and accounts for all increases in transponder equipage thereafter.
- 2. Aggressive Scenario
 - a. Non-transponders: the same as Baseline
 - ATCRBS transponders: the same as Baseline until 1990, and then decreases linearly to zero in year 2000.
 - c. Mode S transponders: the same as Baseline until 1990, and then replaces all ATCRBS by year 2000, as well as accounting for all growth.
- 3. Delayed Scenario
 - a. Non-transponders: the same as Baseline
 - b. ATCRBS transponders: continue to grow until 1990, and thereafter remain constant at that level.
 - c. Mode S transponders: starts from zero in 1990 and accounts for all increases in transponder equipage thereafter.

These scenarios are depicted in Figure 9-1 and in Table 9-1 for the forecast IAC of the Los Angeles basin. The total IAC numbers come from Table 8-1 of the preceding section.



FIGURE 9-1 TRANSPONDER EQUIPAGE SCENARIOS

		TOTAL			NO
SCENARIO	YEAR	IAC	ATCRBS	MODE S	TRANSPONDER
Baseline	1980	358	303	0	55
	1985	388	333	0	55
	1990	452	333	64	55
	1995	558	333	197	28
	2000	687	333	354	0
Aggressive	1980	358	303	0	55
	1985	388	333	0	55
	1990	452	333	64	55
	1995	558	167	363	28
	2000	687	0	687	0
Delayed	1980	358	303	0	55
	1985	388	333	0	55
	1990	452	397	0	55
	1995	558	397	133	28
	2000	687	397	290	0

TABLE 9-1 LOS ANGELES ENVIRONMENT

Having the total IAC, the equipage breakdown, and the distribution of aircraft with distance, we are finally able to obtain the results that are most meaningful for the TCAS design. These are presented in Tables 9-2, 9-3, 9-4.

The densities in a 5 nmi radius square cell and a 10 nmi radius square cell are presented for each of the three scenarios, showing the densities of all aircraft -- ATCRBS equipped aircraft, Mode S equipped aircraft, and non-transponder aircraft. These figures describe the airspace. Possibly more interesting values, however, are obtained by converting the handy but not-too-meaningful "density" figures into "number of aircraft". This is done in the last four columns for a circular region about the TCAS aircraft in the most dense location. For example, in the year 2000, a five-mile system in the most dense Los Angeles environment should be able to track at least 35 aircraft; whereas, a 10-mile system should be able to track 75 aircraft. Assuming the Delayed Scenario, the largest number of ATCRBS tracks that should be handled for a 5-mile system is 20, and for a 10-mile system, 43. (See Table 9-4.) It is to be noted that the number of ATCRBS tracks to be handled is independent of the measurement made of non-transponder aircraft since, under the assumptions, these aircraft ultimately equip with Mode S transponders.

TABLE 9-2

TCAS ENVIRONMENT FOR BASELINE SCENARIO

		DENSITY	WITHIN SQUA	RE CELL OF	RADIUS X	NUMBER OF	AIRCRAFT WI	THIN CIRCU	LAR RADIUS X
×I	Year	Total	ATCRBS Equipped	Mode S Equipped	Not Equipped	Total	ATCRBS Equipped	Mode S Equipped	Not Equipped
5 nmf	1980 1985 1990 1995	.23 .25 .36	.22 .22 .22	0 046 .13	.03 .03 .01	18 20 23 23	51111 51111	0000	ი ი ი <u>-</u> -
10 nmi	2000 1980	.45	.10	• 23 0	.02 0	66 9	33	81 0	ە د
	1985 1990 1995 2000	.14 .16 .24	.12 .12 .12	0 .02 .12	.02 .02 0	42 49 75	36 36 36	0 22 39	0000

TABLE 9-3

TCAS ENVIRONMENT FOR AGGRESSOVE SCENARIO

NUMBER OF AIRCRAFT WITHIN CIRCULAR RADIUS X Equipped Not 0 7 0 0 0 0 F 9 9 9 Mode S Equipped ATCRBS Equipped 17 8 0 0 33 36 18 0 18 Total 18 20 23 35 35 39 42 61 75 Equipped DENSITY WITHIN SQUARE CELL OF RADIUS X Not 0.03 03 03 03 02020 Mode S Equipped 0 02 12 24 0 04 .24 .45 ATCRBS Equipped 10 06 06 22 22 0 Total .12 .14 .16 .19 .23 .25 .36 .45 10 nm1 1980 1985 1990 1995 2000 1980 1985 1990 1995 2000 Year 5 nm1 ×I

9-7

TABLE 9-4 TCAS ENVIRONMENT FOR DELAYED SCENARIO NUMBER OF AIRCRAFT WITHIN CIRCULAR RADIUS X Not Equipped 0 7 0 0 0 0 H M M M Mode S Equipped 32 15 0 0 00025 ATCRBS Equipped 43 33 33 43 43 93 33 Total 39 49 75 75 75 18 23 35 35 Not Equipped DENSITY WITHIN SQUARE CELL OF RADIUS X 0.0.0.0 0.0.0 0 0.02.02 Mode S Equipped ATCRBS Equipped .20 .22 .26 .26 14 Total .12 .14 .16 .19 .23 .25 .36 .45 1980 1985 1990 1995 2000 Year 1980 1985 1990 1995 2000 10 nml 5 mm1 ×

10. SUMMARY AND CONCLUSIONS

From a family of four surveillance flights in the Los Angeles basin, it was found that a relatively consistent relation exists between the number of airborne aircraft in the entire basin and the number in the most dense localized area. The highest localized density of transponder equipped aircraft actually measured was 0.18 aircraft per square nautical mile, within a square cell of 5 nmi radius. The density was found to vary approximately inversely with radius. From measurements made with a ground radar, the fraction of non-transponder aircraft was estimated. The total aircraft population in the Los Angeles basin today appears to be approximately 1.18 times the transponder equipped population.

It was also found that, over the range of variation encountered, the peak instantaneous airborne count of aircraft in the Los Angeles basin is directly proportional to the number of daily operations recorded at all towers within the basin. Using this information, together with FAA projections extending to year 2000, the predicted peak density that might be encountered is estimated to be 0.45 aircraft per square nautical mile within a square cell radius of 5 nmi, an extrapolation of about three times the maximum measured density of today. Within a square cell radius of 10 nmi, the predicted value drops down to 0.24 aircraft per square nmi. The location of the highest density region is along the line from Long Beach to Los Angeles to Van Nuys, where the traffic from these three highly active airports is concentrated. With various assumptions made for aircraft transponder equipage, the maximum number of ATCRBS equipped aircraft that a TCAS would encounter is less than 43 within a 10 nmi circle, and less than 20 within a 5 nmi circle.

These values of peak density and numbers of aircraft represent an upper bound estimate for three reasons. First, evidence of aircraft saturation was not observed, so no account was made of it in the model. It may be expected that with increased operations, congestion of the airspace will ultimately place a limit on the maximum density. The second factor is that the growth in operations was modelled as occurring uniformly over all classes of the present mix of aircraft. If the mix of aircraft changes more to uncontrolled general aviation, for instance, they may increase the population of the outlying regions of airspace more than the dense regions. Third, all new aircraft in the model are assumed to have transponders. If this is not so, the density of transponder equipped aircraft will be less than predicted here.

APPENDIX A

SAMPLES OF OPERATIONS DATA USED IN THE ANALYSIS

The following tables present samples of data collected from towers in the Los Angeles basin. The list of towers is given in Table A-1. A sample of the daily operations summary data is shown in Table A-2. Table A-3 shows a special logging of hourly operations conducted at each of the towers. Table A-4 is a copy of the standard data log of Los Angeles tower (this is the only hourly data routinely collected in the area).

TABLE A-1

LIST OF TOWERS IN THE LOS ANGELES BASIN

Burbank Chino El Monte Fullerton Hawthorne Long Beach Los Angeles Ontario Palm Dale La Vern Brackett Riverside Santa Monica Santa Anna Orange City Torrence Van Nuys

7.5.

TABLE A-2 DAILY OPERATIONS FOR LONG BEACH TOWER FEDERAL AVIATION ADMINISTRATION Prepared by APO-130 -- P302 Daily derations by towers For selected dates

÷

TOTAL Operations	0111 01111 0111 0111 0111 0111 0111 0111 0111 0111 0111	527911 27785
11L I TARY PERCENT		6
MILITARY P Operations	<i>๛๛๚๛๛๛๛๛๛๛๛๛๛๛๛๛๛๛๛๛๛๛๛๛๛๛๛๛๛๛๛๛๛๛๛๛๛</i>	1305 58.7
GENERAL AVIATION PERCENT	₽₽₽₽₽₽₽₽₽₽₽₽₽₽₽₽₽₽₽₽₽₽₽₽₽₽₽₽₽₽₽₽₽₽₽₽₽ ₽₽₽₽	93
GENERAL AVIATION OPERATIONS	2020 2020 2020 2020 2020 2020 2020 202	519712 27353
AIR TAXI PERCENT	8000	-
AIR TAXIS OPERATIONS	ຆ ຆຬຬຬຨຎຆຑຬຆຬຩຎຬຘຎຬຬຬຬຎຬຬຬ ຏຎ	4171 219.5
AIR CARRIER PERCENT		-
AIR Carriers Operations	₩ <u>₩</u> ₩₩₩₩₩₩₩₩₩₩₩₩₩₩₩₩₩₩₩₩₩₩₩₩₩₩₩₩₩₩₩₩₩₩	2723
DAY	NNNNNN00000000000000000000000000000000	
MONTH	••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••	
YEAR	*** **********************************	ITAL FERAGE
LOCID		LOCID TO

į

• · · · •

.....

A-3

TERRAL	ATLATEN		RATION		· · · ·			Vitoreal	N REGION]
			1	OURLY TR	APPIC COUR	n]
PACILITY	i Long	Beach To	wer				DATE: 6,	/2/82	· ·	1
BOUR			1993 BERAN	•		T	LOCAL		GRAND	1
LOCAL	ATR CARE	ATE TATT	CWR	NTL.	TOTAL		1071.	TOTAL	TOTAL	1
0000-			1		+			·	┟────	1
0100			+	<u> </u>	<u> </u>	<u> </u>	<u> </u>	{		4
0200-						1	[Í	1	
0200-	1		+		+	<u> </u>		+	f	1
0100				L		<u> </u>		L	<u> </u>	
0300-			1	}		1		1	1	i
0600-	+		+	t	┽────	+	<u> </u>		<u> </u>	ſ
0500					l	<u> </u>	L	L		j
0500-			Ţ		T	F				1
0600			+	 	┿╼╼╼╼	<u> </u>		<u> </u>	 	4
0700	1					1	1	1	1	1
0700-	1		1		1	1	1	1	1	1
0800	<u></u>	L	÷	<u> </u>	<u> </u>	<u></u>	ļ	ļ	ļ	1
0900-			1		1	1	1	}		[
0900-	+		+	<u>↓</u>	+	+	<u> </u>	t		ł
1000						1				ALTIMETER
1000-								1		
1100	┿╼╼┥		+	┼╾╧╌╸	40	- 04	┟───	104	1 291	29.96
1200	0	3	33	0	36	131	0	167	458	29.97
1200-			T		T	1				
1300	0		4_41_	-3	64	41		85	543	29.97
11,00	0	1 1	43	0	44	25	0	69	612	29.95
12.00-			+	1				1		
1500	0	1	69	10	70	54	 	54	736	29.94
1600-		1	1	1	1	1	ļ	1	1	
1600-	t		+		1		1			
1700			L	L	l	L	L			
1700-			1	t	{	1				
1800-	1		+	t	<u>†</u>	<u> </u>				
			<u> </u>	ł		I				
1900-	[]			1	1			1		
2000-	t		+	<u> </u>	+	+		<u> </u>		
2100			1	l	1	l	}	l _		
2100-			T		1	1		r		
2200	 	<u> </u>	<u> </u>				L	<u> </u>		
2300			1	{	1	1	ł	ł		
2300-	<u>+</u>		+	<u>├</u>	t	<u> </u>	<u> </u>	h		
0000	1		1	1	1		1			

TABLE A-3 HOURLY OPERATIONS FOR LONG BEACH TOWER

WE FORM 7210-14(8-71) (REPLACES WE 7210-9 & WE 7232-2)

TABLE A-4 HOURLY OPERATIONS FOR LOS ANGELES TOWER (Performance Measurement System)

PACILTY		[╞					ļ		Į		['			6476	ſ
Ś	3	a												A SAME	(-)	-87
(1)	8	3	ł	(ee	ŝ	Η	8	Η	ŝ	Ļ			1		(11)	181)
-	3	5	TOTAL INFR	0914100	ACTL	4			ACTUAL GAMAIL	28	7		N N	5	FACTORE RELATED TO REMOVE CALLER FOR DELAYE	
LOCAL ONT				DEMAND	UNA	8	Ann I		An De		010	Arnes	2			
enee (400		For	1 36	69	×	24	M	~	U 0	<u>7</u> K	1			1	teu Demano	S
1500	Å	1	100	108	H	20	25	1	10		-			$\left \frac{1}{1} \right $	Lau bemany	Bm
909] 	8	ε	> 80 80	89	"	25	8	¢	2	:	-			21 9	139 ¿Derzer ware was tan tan	r a
1200	2		90 V	201	2	32	N	1	0		:			+	LOW DRAAND	22
1000	20	=	84 ~	8	¥	3	on n	Z	5	-				-	C In From	42
1400		;	50 1	77	48	3	6	2	1		:			<u>'</u>	Chrain & d hol	Ke.
1000	187		10 1	701	\$	42	ī	5	2		=			25.1	Brost Join	R
110 001 P	2		1 25	94	**	48	1	5	7 7	\vdash	1			26 92	(() & LOCAL FIOW J MATI FLOW	r.
Catch mei	8	:	28	76	2	X	2	ß	8	110	:			2	- (3) 1 20 CAL & 1 MAT	SS
0-225 0091			88	35	ର	36	31	96		-	:			.	cow brown	23
1708 6000			57	83	42	2	23	Z	11	5				·	LOW DEMAND	マコ
1808 0.00			48	26	ī,	33	64			•	Ŀ			•	Low Dr. wowy	2vr
0000 8051			É É	87	4	35	5	36	1		'			-	6~~~ () Emme	Ř
201CO 8002			69	62	37	32	36	2	4	:	•			•	- Ditward	, Ж
2100 0400			65		39	26			+		-				Low DEMAND	are
2000 0500			•							_				\vdash		
	•			1.1						1	1		Ť	. ş	$\frac{260}{2100} - \frac{31}{212} = \frac{50.2}{2000}$	
												n	4	Ś	OFK MIRIO :	
												-	50	N VC	دوروندها با ح	

A-5

All and a second se

TABLE A-4 (Concluded)

5

	COLUMN 1. THE Load and Commerce Manufactor	COLUMN 2. Performente Index (N) = presentage determined by	dividing the actual operations by the Engineered Performance Standard (FPS) which coincides with the reavery configuration (P)	Contrast in the contrast of contrast in the contrast ond with the	COLUMN 4. TOTAL ACTUALS the number of articula and department	including VFE. Also indicate in purseithers the surface of VFE. discript handhad deriver that how.	COLURIN S. MODIFIED DEMAIND. Official Aribus Guide (OAC) Schoold of AL Taci/AL Currier (Column 7 AT/AC) pins the Actual	Central Aviation/MBD tary (Colman & GA/MIL).	COUNTRY 6. ACTUALS, the astraut smills: headbar, private and departments intendented represents.	COLUMN 7046 SCHEDL, Scheduled Ar Carter & Au Tast eperations attasted from Official Arbur Galds & provided by Arction	COULDHAR & ACTUAL CAMIL, the General Annation & MIMMAY	operations has he is a second a period of .	Department	COUNTR IO.DELAYS, reportable articul & departure delays (mpa- ments) tabeland) service sombur of delay mineters. A sumber of	COLUMN 11-FACTORS return to antinuous à come fe deriv	Remarks partianat to datays or performants. Row came when Pris is under PS. (Des types of camed factors).	COLUMN 12. INSTALS of the surplayer heaving date.	COLURN 11. THE, Long and GMT.	COUNTER, Londy Argeness agends F2 as V73 proceeding for regert, Bayliness ground service affording for symmetric ground is reflected is addisared reservic.
Trunk of Caliba - Calman	PERFORMANCE AND/OR DELAYS	FACTOR BECIEV	The second secon	CONSTRUCTION. Municipality of construction country limit-	then to running in use. Task-may construction.	NOISE Abstrant providents imposed, causing rai- usy clauses		SATURATION Geter/preatly house telerated depict speed.	EQUINGER FAA seriement est of series (shed es	conditions that was provided as	ARCIART DISTURTION		print printly to ach to devent etc.	VOLUNE	UNKNOWN	OTHER	NOTE: Report Two demand, when actual agreetions ar law and a first of the other section or manufactor determined		
691	HA MATHON				15557 M23 aucio 1105		1 1255 250c N 10 3806		U 2055 E28 360 10 311	V CCR 10 2710	VICE IS BANY								
Η	•	5			₹ •		5		2	1 1	1 2								
2	Ĩ	LOCAL		•		ł	1140	1		1	Ĩ	Į	<u>.</u>	1	<u>.</u>	1		1	

A-6

APPENDIX B

REFERENCES

- U.S. Government Printing Office, <u>Report of Department of</u> <u>Transportation Air Traffic Control Advisory Committee</u>, Volume 1, Washington, D.C., December 1969.
- Willett, F.M., <u>The 1972 Los Angeles Basin Standard Air Traffic</u> <u>Model</u>, FAA-RD-73-90, Federal Aviation Administration, Washington, DC, September 1973.
- Cohen, S. and F. Maginnis, <u>Statistical Summary of the 1982 Los</u> <u>Angeles Basin Standard Traffic Model</u>, MTR-6387, The MITRE Corporation, McLean, Virginia, April 1973.
- Mundra, A. D., <u>Advanced Air Traffic Management System B: 1995</u> <u>Los Angeles Basin Traffic Model</u>, MTR-6419, The MITRE Corporation, McLean, Virginia, March 1974.
- Harman, W. H., <u>Air Traffic Density and Distribution</u> <u>Measurements</u>, ATC-80, Lincoln Laboratories, Lexington, Massachusetts, May 1979.
- Mundra, A. D., <u>A Los Angeles Basin 1100 Aircraft Traffic Model</u>, MTR-80W329, The MITRE Corporation, McLean, VA, January 1981.
- U.S. Department of Transportation, <u>OSEM Technical Letter Report</u>, EM-82-1-LR, Federal Aviation Administation, Office of Systems Engineering Management, Washington, D.C. July 1982.
- Wells, W. I., <u>Verification of DABS Sensor Surveillance</u> <u>Performance (ATCRBS Mode at Typical ASR Sites Throughout CONUS</u>, ATC-79, Lincoln Laboratory, Lexington, Massachusetts, December 1977.